Case 4:07-cr-00188

'Y o

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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INDICTMENT
Count One

(Conspiracy, 18 U.S.C. § 371)

A. INTRODUCTION

AT ALL TIMES MATERIAL HEREIN:

1. Emerson Manufactured Homes Ltd. (“Emerson Manufactured Housing”) was the name

of a limited liability corporation owned and operated by KEITH RAYBON, a defendant herein,

which sold mobile homes also referred to as manufactured housing. MICHAEL DAVIS and

MICHAEL DAVID GRIMES, Sr., also known as Pops, defendants herein, both worked for Emerson

Manufactured Homes.
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2. Royal Lion Mortgage, Inc. (“Royal Lion”) was a mortgage brokerage business in Conroe,
Texas, operated by JEANNIE NELSON, defendant herein.

3. JEANNIE NELSON was a licensed Texas mortgage broker and the Executive Vice
President, Director and 10% owner of Royal Lion.

4. ABN AMRO Mortgage Group, Inc. (“ABN AMRO”) was a Delaware corporation located
in Ann Arbor, Michigan. ABN AMRO was a nationwide mortgage lender that made mortgage loans
based, among other means, upon applications submitted by mortgage lenders. InterFirst was a
wholly owned subsidiary of ABN AMRO. ABN AMRO was also a wholly owned subsidiary of
Standard Federal Bank.

5. Standard Federal Bank was a financial institution in Troy, Michigan, the deposits of which
were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

6. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation was an agency of the United States established
to regulate banks and to protect depositors by insuring the accounts of bank depositors against loss
up to $100,000 with the purpose of preventing their collapse and instilling public confidence in the
nation's banks. The FDIC was backed by the United States government. .

7. In the loan application process, Royal Lion would submit to ABN AMRO a Uniform
Residential Loan Application, referred to as a 1003, and a Uniform Underwriting Transmittal
Summary, referred to as a 1008.

8. Monopoly Company was the name of a real estate appraisal business operated byHOLLYS
HEASLEY, a defendant herein. HOLLY HEASLEY ARBUCKLE also known as Holly Heasley, a
defendant herein, was the daughter of Hollys Heasley and worked at Monopoly Company

9. Ameristar Residential Appraisal Services was the name of a real estate business operated
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by PATRICIA LENNON, also known as Pat Lennon, a defendant herein.

10. Old Republic Title Company of Conroe (“Old Republic Title”) was a title company in
Conroe, Texas, which closed real estate transactions. HEATHER ADAMS, a defendant herein,
worked at Old Republic Title.

B. THE CONSPIRACY AND ITS OBJECTS

11. Beginning in or about April, 2001, and continuing to in or about June, 2002, in the
Houston Division of the Southern District of Texas,
KEITH STEVEN RAYBON,
MICHAEL DAVIS,
MICHAEL DAVID GRIMES, Sr., a/k/a Pops
JEANNIE NELSON,
KANDY POWELL,
HOLLYS HEASLEY,
HOLLY HEASLEY ARBUCKLE, a/k/a Holly Heasley,
PATRICIA LENNON, a/k/a Pat Lennon,
and
HEATHER ADAMS
defendants herein, did knowingly combine, conspire, confederate and agree together and with one
another and with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury to commit offenses against the
United States, namely:
a. To knowingly execute and attempt to execute a scheme and artifice to defraud and to

obtain money and property from others by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations,
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and promises, by use of the Postal Service and private and commercial interstate carriers, which
affected a financial institution, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341;

b. To knowingly execute a scheme and artifice to defraud and to obtain money and property
from others by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises by use of
interstate wire communications, which affected a financial institution, in violation of Title 1 8, United
States Code 1343.

C. THE MANNER AND MEANS

The manner and means of the conspiracy included, but were not limited to the following:

12. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would did advertise and cause to be
advertised mobile homes for sale by Emerson Manufactured Homes, using the promise of attractive
rates and low monthly payments.

13. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did cause employees of
Emerson Manufactured Homes to tell borrowers that they could qualify for a mortgage as Emerson
Manufactured Homes owned the mortgage company.

14. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did create and cause to be
created documents to vest title in the borrower and create a lien in favor of Emerson Manufactured
Homes in a “pre-closing,” which often occurred only a few days prior to the closing of a refinancing
loan approved by ABN AMRO.

15. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did submit and cause to
be submitted to ABN AMRO false and fraudulent loan applications to allegedly refinance loans
secured by mobile homes and the land on which they were located.

16. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did represent and cause
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to be represented to ABN AMRO that loans made by ABN AMRO were refinances by the borrowers
of mobile homes and the land on which they were placed instead of actual purchases of those mobile
homes and the land at inflated prices from Emerson Manufactured Homes by the borrowers.

17. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would did prepare and cause to be
prepared inflated real estate appraisals of the properties including mobile homes for which loans
were applied for from ABN AMRO.

18. It was a further part of the conspiracy that the defendants would did submit and cause
to be submitted to ABN AMRO inflated real estate appraisals of the properties for which loans were
applied for from ABN AMRO.

19. It was further part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did deposit and cause
to be deposited money into bank accounts of borrowers purchasing manufactured housing from
Emerson Manufactured Homes in order that these individuals could qualify for loans.

20. Itwas further a part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did cause borrowers
to sign an “All Bills Paid Affidavit” for debts which the borrowers did not owe.

21. It was a further part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did use proceeds
from the scheme and artifice to defraud to purchase money orders to send to ABN AMRO to keep
or bring current the mortgages of borrowers who could not meet their obligations and hide their
inability to pay their mortgages.

22. Tt was a further part of the conspiracy that the defendants would and did share in the
proceeds of the fraudulently obtained loans from ABN AMRO.

D. OVERT ACTS OF THE CONSPIRACY

The following overt acts among others were committed by the defendants in furtherance of
the conspiracy in the Southern District of Texas and elsewhere:

Property at 16498 Emerson Circle, Conroe, Texas



Case 4:07-cr-00188 Document1  Filed 05/10/2007 Page 6 of 26

(1) On or about June 4, 2001, the defendant JEANNIE NELSON caused to be issued
underwriting findings to Royal Lion in connection with a request for a loan in the amount of $87,000
to a borrower.

(2) On or about June 4, 2001, defendant KANDY POWELL signed Jeannie Nelson’s name
to a Form 1003 for a borrower requesting a loan in the amount of $87,000.

(3) On or about June 12, 2001, defendant JEANNIE NELSON sent and caused to be sent a
request for appraisal of the property located at 16498 Emerson Circle, Conroe, Texas, which stated
that the loan amount was $87,000 and the estimated value was $109,000.

(4) Onor about June 12,2001, the defendants caused a facsimile transmission to be sent from
Royal Lion to ABN AMRO containing a “Just the Fax” Submission Cover Sheet, a Form 1008 and
a Form 1003 in connection with a request for a loan in the amount of $87,000.

(5) On or about June 13,2001, defendant JEANNIE NELSON caused ABN AMRO to issue
a Underwriting Report to Royal Lion in connection with a loan request in the amount of $87,000.

(6) On or about June 26, 2001, defendant HOLLYS HEASLEY issued and caused to be
issued an appraisal for the property at 16498 Emerson Circle, Conroe, Texas, stating that the final
estimate of value as of June 13, 2001, was $114,500.

(7) On or about June 27, 2001, the defendants recorded and caused to be recorded a
Vendor’s Lien from Emerson Manufactured Homes to a borrower and a Deed of Trust signed by the
borrower for the benefit of Emerson Manufactured Homes for the property located at 16498 Emerson
Circle, Conroe, Texas.

(8) On or about June 29, 2001, the defendants caused a borrower to sign documents in
connection with the closing of a loan to borrower for the purchase of 16498 Emerson Circle, Conroe,
Texas.

(9) On or about July 3, 2001, the defendants caused $85,385.23 in loan proceeds to be wire
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